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The Riverside Baptist Church, erected in 1925, is an
octagonal structure of grey limestone blocks with a red
tile roof. Structurally, the main body of the building
is supported and carried by steel trusses with eight inch
cypress beams beneath which are exposed on the interior.
The roof of the nave and transept is carried on wood trusses
with rafters beneath. The entire foundation is of brick
laid on concrete footings and all flooring is concrete. 1In
the auditorium, baptistry and corridors Spanish tile has
been laid over the concrete and in the choir wood flooring
has been laid. The exterior walls of the building are
covered with stucco and the interior walls are plastered.
The walls were marked off while still wet to achieve the
effect of aging.

The floorplan of the building forms a Greek Cross
with a layout of rooms grouped around the octagonal nave.
Bays extend from four sides of the octagon giving it the
Cross structure. An ambulatory goes all the way around the
interior and a central aisle extends from the apse to the
groin vaulted narthex in the east portico. The east bay
serves as the main entrance to the church and has double
doors of carved pecky cypress with a carved tympanum above.
Above the tympanum the wall is pierced with three arched
windows carried on miniature columns. The total effect of
the east wall is a three part division of doors, tympanum
and windows flanked by giant pilasters and subsidiary
entrances. The north and south bays are lower with the
wall surface divided in half. Below are the carved double
doors with their Greek Cross motif and above large radial
windows, the spokes of which are tiny columns whose capi-
tals are replicas of interior supporting columns. Fenes-
tration occurs in the octagon walls on the four sides left
free of projecting bays and in each case are the arched
windows in groups of three. Directly below these are
grouped three blind arches. The main ornamentation through-
out is cast stone and includes all columns, window and
door trim and capitals.

On the interior, the effect of height has not been
achieved, perhaps due to the fact that the dome is carried
directly on the side walls of the octagon with no subsi-
diary vaulting. There is, consequently, a feeling of
viness about the building. An illuminated zone at the
B >of the nave walls lights the base of the dome and gives
ructure its only real feeling of lightness. The nave
t either side of the apsidal opening are pierced and
ree arches carried on columns with ornamental iron
etween. The choir, traditionally located behind the
occupies the space immediately above the narthex.

n each of the 8 walls scriptural phrases have been
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placed according to the usage and meaning of that portion
of the building. The octagonal pulpit, pews and rostrum
furniture are of American black walnut and were made locally.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

AddisongMi%ner, whose sphere of influence stems from
the architecture which he did in Palm Beach and Boca Raton
in the 1920's was a man reputed to be only vaguely inter-
ested in matters pertaining to religion. However, in a
1925 letter to his brother, the Reverend Henry Mizner,
Addison stated that he and another brother Wilson had
decided "that the best thing to do would be to build a
Cathedral of the Madonna in memory of Mamma Mizner."
Apparently, Mizner originally intended that this "cathe-
dral" should be located in the millionaires' colony at
Boca Raton and should be taken over by the Episcopal
Church with a construction cost of two or three million
dollars. This plan never did materialize, but in 1924,

at the height of Mizner's popularity, he was approached

by Dr. H. Marshall Taylor of Jacksonville concerning the
designing of another church. Members of the building
committee of the Riverside Baptist Church under the leader-
ship and influence of Dr. Taylor agreed to approach Mizner
with their meager funds requesting that he design a new
church for the then small congregation. Perhaps remem-
bering his promise to his mother or perhaps challenged

by the idea of building a religious structure, Mizner
agreed to design the church and accepting no fee, to

carry it through to completion. '

Located on the southeast corner of King and Park
Streets in the Riverside section of Jacksonville,”the
church is an impressive structure from any angle. Built
of grey limestone blocks with a red tile roof, the build-
ing embodies features of three major types of architecture:
Romanesque, Byzantine and Spanish. The rather eclectic
nature of the building is typical of Mizner's architectural
style, one for which he was severly criticized by many.

In the case of the Riverside Church, however, the design
would seem to be more an intelligent adaptation of pre-
existing styles. Careful study on the part of the archi-
tect regarding the play of light and shadow and the posi-
tion of the sun at certain times of the day produced an
almost perfect natural lighting of the interior. During




Florida Architecture of Addison Mizner. Introduction by

. Ida M..Tarbell. New York: William Helburn, Inc., 1928.
Mizner, Addison, Palm Beach Life, Vol. 54 (May, 1961), 80.

. (A letter to his brother Henry Mizner dated August 15,1925)
Seiden, Steven Arnold. "The Mizner Touch".‘Palm'Beach‘Life,
Vol. 54 (August 24, 1961), 30-33.
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morning services the sun filters through an amber tinted win-
dow suffusing a golden light over the congregation. Mizner
further placed blue glass in the side windows transforming
the sunlight into soft blue illumination at a later time of
day. Despite the great care which Mizner took to create a
beautiful church there were many in the congregation who
were displeased with the general style of the building, feel-
ing that it resembled more an Episcopal or Catholic church.
On these grounds some of the congregation was lost. It is
true that in the history of Baptist architecture the River-
side Church is a complete break with tradition in both style
and iconography. During the cornerstone laying ceremonies

on January 25, 1926, the speaker said, "I do not know of a
church quite so remarkable as this gem of architecture." The
building speaks for itself as a tribute to the genius of
Addison Mizner.
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